IN THE SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA

OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL, : No. 1894 Disciplinary Docket No. 3

Petitioner
V. ' : No. 176 DB 2012
SEAN RYAN McBRIDE, . Attorney Registration No. 94514
Respondent . (Allegheny County)

ORDER

PER CURIAM:

AND NOW, this 24" day of July, 2013, there having been filed with this Court by
Sean Ryan McBride his verified Statement of Resignation dated February 28, 2013,
stating that he desires to resign from the Bar of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in
accordance with the provisions of Rule 215, Pa.R.D.E., itis
. ORDERED that the resignation of Sean Ryan McBride is accepted; he is
disbarred on consent from the Bar of the Commonwealth of Pennsyivania retroactive to
December 20, 2012; and he shall comply with the provisions of Rule 217, Pa.R.D.E.
lResponde‘nt shall pay costs, if any, to the Disciplinary Board pursuant to Rule 208(g), '
Pa.R.D.E.

A True Copy Patricia Nicola
As Of 7/24/2013

i Al o ULHES
Supreme Court of Pennsylvania



BEFORE THE DISCIPLINARY BOARD OF THE
SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA

OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL . No. 1894 Disciplinary Docket No. 3
Petitioner :
No. 176 DB 2012
V.
Attorney Registration No. 94514
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE \
Respondent . (Allegheny County)

RESIGNATION BY RESPONDENT

Pursuant to Rule 215
of the Pennsylvania Rules of Disciplinary Enforcement



BEFORE THE DISCIPLINARY BOARD OF THE
SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA

OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL,: No. 1894 Disciplinary Docket

No. 3
Pétitioner
No. 176 DB 2012
Vs,
SEAN RYAN McBRIDE, : Attorney Registration No. 94514

Respondent : (Allegheny County)

RESIGNATION
UNDER RULE 215, Pa.R.D.E.

Sean Ryan McBride hereby states that he is a member of the Bar
of the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania and is the Respondent named in
the matter filed at the number indicated above. In conformity with
Rule 215 of the Pennsylvania Rules of Disciplinary Enforcement, he

further states as follows:

i. He is &an attorney admitted in the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, having been admitted to the bar on or about April '8,

2005, His attorney registration number is 94514.

2. He was temporarily suspended from the practice of law
pursuant to Rule Z14, Pa.R.D.E., by Order of the Supreme Court of
Pennsylvania dated December 20, 2012. He has not been readmitted.

3. He wishes to resign from the Bar, his resignation is freely
and voluntarily rendered, he is neot being subjected to coercion or

duress, and he is fully aware of the implications of submitting his
resignation.



4. He is aware that there is presently pénding an investi-
gation into allegations that he has been guilty of misconduct, the
nature and specifics of which have been made known to him with
regard to a Statement of Facts, a copy of which is attached hereto
and incorporated herein a$ Exhibit 1, an Indictment filed against
him in the United States District Court for the Western District of
Pennsylvania attached hereto as Exhibit 2, a Gullty Plea Agreement
attached hereto as Exhibit 3, and a Judgment in a Criminal Case

attached hereto as Exhibit 4.

5. He ackncwledges that the material facts, upon which are
predicated the allegations of professional misconduct so lodged

against him, are true.

6. He submits his resignation because he knows that he could
not successfully defend himself against the misconduct under

investigation.

7. He is fully aware that the submission of this Resignaticn
Statement is irrevocable and that he can only apply for
reinstatement to the practice of law pursuant to the provisions of
Enforcement Rule 218 (b).

8. He requests that his resignaticn be made retroactive to
January 192, 2012, the effective date of his suspension pursuant to

Rule 214, Pa.R.D.E. by the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania.

9. Office of Disciplinary Ccunsel takes no position on his

reguest for retroactivity.

10. He has consulted with counsel in regard to submitting his

resignation.




In accordance with Rule 215, Pa.R.D.E., this statement is made
by the signatory subject to the penalties of 18 Pa.C.S. §4904

{relating to unsworn falsification to authorities).

Signed this 28 day of ¥anxxu4 , 2013.
/

<R

Se Ryan McBride
espondent




BEFORE THE DISCIPLINARY BOARD OF THE
SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA

OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL,: No. 1894 Disciplinary Docket

No. 3
Petitioner
No. 176 DB 2012
Vs,
SEAN RYAN McBRIDE, : Attorney Registration No. 94514

Resgpondent : {Allegheny County)

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. The Respondent, Séan Ryan McBride, 1s an attorney admitted
to practice law in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Attorney
Registration No. 94514. His status is "Administrative Suspension.”

His address is No. 66851-066, Federal Correctional Institution, P.

0. Box 1000, Morgantown, WV 26507.

z. On March 132, 2012, in the United States District Couﬁé for
the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, pursuant to an Indictment
docketed at No. 2:010CR0O007¢0-003, and a plea agreement, Respondent
entered a plea of guilty to one count of Conspiracy, four counts of

Bank Fraud and Aiding and Abetting Bank Fraud, and seven counts of

Wire Fraud and Aiding and Abetting Wire Fraud.

3. Respondent's plea of guilty was subject to the condition
that the Court approve the sentence agreed upon by the defense and

the prosecution and, in the absence of such approval, Respondent




and/or the government would be permitted to withdraw from the

Guilty Plea Agreement.

4, On October 1, 2012, the Ccurt accepted the Plea Agreement,
and sentenced Respondent to incarceration of 63 months, to be
followed by supervised release for five years, a special assessment

of 51,200, and restitution to be determined.

5. Pursuant to Pennsylvania Rule of Disciplinary Enforcement
214 (i), Respondent’s plea and sentence constitute a "ccnviction”

for purposes of Rule 214, Rule 203 ({(b) (1), and Rule 402.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA : CRIMINAL NO. 10-

Y. : DATE FILED: December 9, 2010
ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, III : VIOLATIONS:
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS 18 U.S.C. § 1349 (conspiracy ~ 1 count)
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE : 18 U.S.C. § 1341 (mail fraud - 1 count)

ERIC BASCOVE 18 U.S.C. § 1343 (wire fraud - 8 counts)
: 18 U.S.C. § 1344 (bank fraud - 4 counts)
18 U.S.C. § 1957 (money laundering — 1
count)
18 U.S.C. § 2 (aiding and abetting)
Notice of forfeiture

INDICTMENT

COUNT ONE
THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

BACKGROUND

L. From in or about September 2006 through in or about July 2009,
defendant ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, IIl, was the president of DeMarco REI, Inc. ’
(“DeMarco REI"), a mortgage rescue foreclosure company. From approximately January 2008
through July 2009, defendant DEMARCO operated DeMarco REI from an office in Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania. |

2. From in or about June 2008 until in or about early 2009, defendant
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS was vice president of sales at DeMarco REL

3. From in or about June 2008 to in or about June 2009, defendant ERIC

BASCOVE was an employee at DeMarco REL
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4, At all times material to this indictment, defendant SEAN RYAN
MCBRIDE was a title agent at Settlement Engine, Inc., in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. Asa
settlement agent and agent for a title insurance company, defendant MCBRIDE received funds
from lenders and deposited them into an escrow account. He was obligated to disburse funds
from real estate transactions only as detailed on the settlement statement, also known as a Form
HUD-1, after the buyer of the real estate had provided the required funds for closing. Settlement
Engine closed loans for DeMarco RE] from approximately June 2008 through early December
2008.

5. At all times relevant to this indictment, Flagstar Bank FSB was a financial
institution headquartered in Troy, Michigan, and its deposits were insured by the Federal Deposit

{nsurance Corporation (**FDIC”).

6. At all times relevant to this indictment, American Partners Bank, which
changed its name to Waterfield Bank in January 2008, was a financial institution headquartered
in Germantown, Maryland, and its deposits were insured by the FDIC.

7. At all times relevant to this indictment, Everbank was a financial
institution headquartered in Jacksonville, Florida, and its deposits were insured by the FDIC.

THE CONSPIRACY

8. From in or June 2008 through in or about December 2008, in the Eastern

District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants

ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, 111,
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE, and
ERIC BASCOVE
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conspired and agreed, together with others known and unknown to the grand jury, to knowingly
devise a scheme to defraud, and to obtain money and property by means of materially false and
fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, and to obtain monies owned by and under
the care, custody, and control of a tinancial institution by means of false and fraudulent
pretenses, representations, and promises, in violation of Title |8, United States Code, Sections

1343 and 1344,

MANNER AND MEANS

It was part of the conspiracy that:

DeMarco REI

9. Defendant ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, III, directed his employees
to contact homeowners in financial distress and pitch a solution. The “pitch” varied, but
typically DeMarco REI employees explained that DeMarco REI would buy the homeowner’s
house and rescue the financially distressed homeowner from foreclosure, Under this plan, the
former homeowner could continue to live in his home, paying rent to DeMarco REI for one year,
DeMarco REI employees claimed that, during that term, they would help repair the homeowner’s
credit and assist the homeowner in obtaining a mortgage to repurchase his house. The DeMarco
REI employees further claimed that, if there was equity in their house at the time of the sale to

DeMarco REI then DeMarco REI would put that money into an escrow account or rent reserve

account for the homeowner.

0. However, DeMarco REI did not purchase the house from the homeowner.

[nstead, defendant ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, III, and his employees solicited “investors”

to buy the homes of people facing foreclosure. Defendant DEMARCO executed contracts with
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the investors, making clear that the investor would put no money into the transaction. Rather,
DeMarco REI would provide the investor with the down payment to purchase the property and
DeMarco REI would make the monthly mortgage payments.

[1. Once an investor was paired with a distressed homeowner, DeMarco REI
cmployees then prepared a mortgage application, also known as a HUD Form 1003, for the
investor. However, in preparing these mortgage applications, defendants ANTHONY JAMES
DEMARCO, 11, MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS, ERIC BASCOVE, and other DeMarco REI
employees acting at their direction, made numerous false statements and created numerous false
and fraudulent documents to use to secure a larger mortgage loan than a lender would otherwise
have approved.

12. Once an investor had been paired with a homeowner and a mortgage
commitment had been secured, DeMarco REI employees arranged for the transaction to go to
closing, using various different scttlement companies. At closing, DeMarco REI arranged for the
seller’s proceeds — i.e., the seller’s equity that was supposed to be deposited into an escrow
account for the seller — to instead be deposited into DeMarco’s RED’s checking account. There
never were any escrow accounts. Defendant DBEMARCO then used the sellers’ equity to fund the
transactions, i.., to pay the investor’s down payment and closing costs, to operate DeMarco REI,
and to fund his own lavish lifestyle.

Settlement Engine, Inc.

13, Defendant SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE authorized the disbursement of the
proceeds due to the seller at closing from Settlement Engine’s escrow account, Although the

scttlement statements preparced by Settlement Engine for the DeMarco REI transactions routinely
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falsely showed that the sellers’ proceeds were disbursed to the sellers, defendant MCBRIDE

routinely authorized the disbursement of the sellers’ proceeds not to the sellers but to DeMarco

RE].

14, In or about August 2008, defendant SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE began
wiring the seller’s proceeds to DeMarco REI before DeMarco REI wired the buyer’s funds to
Settlement Engine, thus enabling DeMarco REI to use the seller’s equity to pay the buyer's down

payment and closing costs.

OVERT ACTS

In furtherance of the conspiracy and to accomplish its objects, the defendants

committed the following overt acts, among others, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and

elsewhere:

The Sale of P.H.’s Home to Investor M.B.

15. P.H. owned her home in Stowe, Pennsylvania, and had no mortgage. By
2008, P.H. had financial problems. Defendant MICHAEL RICHARID ROBERTS called P.H.
and they discussed “refinancing” her house. However, rather than re-financing the house,
defendant ROBERTS and others at DeMarco REI arranged to sell the house from P.H. to
M.D.B., a DeMarco REI investor.

16. DeMarco REI employees prepared a false mortgage application to obtain a
mortgage loan from Flagstar Bank for investor M.D.B. In the application, DeMarco REI
employees falsely stated that M.D.B. had $70,600 in a bank account at Commerce Bank. On or
about September 18, 2008, defendant ERIC BASCOVE altered M.D.B."s Commerce Bank

account statement, inflating M.D.B.’s ending balance from approximately 53,399.76 to
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approximately $73,399.76. Defendant BASCOVE emailed this altered bank statement to
defendant MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS. This altered account statement was then sent to
Flagstar Bank in support of the mortgage application for M.D.B."s purchase of P.H.’s house.

17, Settlement Engine, Inc., was the settlement agent for this transaction. On
or about October 1, 2008, Flagstar Bank wired M.D.B.’s new mortgage loan to Settlement
Engine. Defendant SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE then wired all of the money due to the seller P.H.
to DeMarco REL In turn, DeMarco REI wired back to Settlement Engine the money due from
the buyer, namely, M.D.B.’s down payment and closing costs, and DeMarco RE! kept the

difference.

The Sale of R.P.”s Home to Investor D.P.

18. R.P. owned a condominium in Lincoln Park, New Jersey. He had no
mortgage. Eventually, R.P. decided to try to scll his condominium. On or about QOctober 9,
2008, defendant ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, 111, came to R.P.’s condominium and offered
R.P. approximately $304,000 for the condo, R‘.P. accepted the offer and signed papers that day.

19. Defendant ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, 111, told R.P. that he would
wire the money to R.P."s bank account. However, no money was ever wired to the account,
despite R.P.’s repeated phone calls to defendant DEMARCO and others at DeMarco REL

20. Settlement Engine was the closing agent for this transaction, for which
Flagstar Bank was the new morigage lender for the buyer D.P. Defendant ANTHONY JAMES
DEMARCO, III caused a false settlement statement to be prepared. The HUD shows that D.P.

purchased R.P."s condo for approximately $380,000, paying approximately $89,626.84 in down
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payment and closing costs. The HUD shows that R.P. received approximately $363,908.21 from
the sale of his condo. DeMarco REI’s name appears nowhere on the HUD.

2L In fact, D.P. was a DeMarco REI investor and he paid nothing to purchase
R.P.’s condominium, and R.P. received nothing from the sale of his condominium. Instead,
Settlement Engine wired all of the money due to R.P. to DeMarco REI, which then used some of
the money to pay D.P.’s down payment and closing costs, wiring that money back to Settlement

Engtne, and kept the balance.

The Sale of A.B.’s Home to Investor S.R.

22, A.B. owned a home on Garden Lane in Bensalem, Pennsylvania. He was
laid-off from his job and fell behind in his mortgage payments. A DeMarco REI employee called
A.B. The employee offered to help A.B. save his home, regain ownership, and repair his credit.
A.B. accepted the offer,

23, During the settlement for the sale of his home, A.B. asked wﬁen he would
receive money from the sale, and defendant MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS falsely told A.B.
that the money would be held in an escrow account and A.B. would get the money when A.B.
re-purchased his home,

24, A DeMarco REI employee recruited S.R. to be a straw purchaser of A.B.’s
home.

25. Settlement Engine closed the transaction on or about December 5, 2008.
Defendant SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE took approximately $39,620.62 of the cash due to A.B. and

disbursed this money to the personal accounts of defendants ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO,
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I, MICHAEL ROBERTS, and MCBRIDE, and to an account of C.C. Defendant MCBRIDE
wired the remainder to DeMarco REI’s account,

26,  Defendants ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, [1I, MICHAEL ROBERTS,
and SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE caused a false settlement statement to be prepared. None of the
disbursements described above was reflected on the settlement statement. Rather, it showed that
A.B. received $104,673.79 from the sale of his house. In reality, A.B. never received a penny.

The Sale of R.H.’s Home to Investor S.R.

27, On or about December 9, 2008, in relation to a closing for the sale of
R.H.’s home in Pennsauken, New Jersey, to investor S.R., defendant MICHAEL RICHARD .
ROBERTS sent an e-mail to P.D. attaching a computer-generated image of a non-existent TD
Bank Official Check, purportedly purchased by the buyer and payable to the seller for
approximately $41,136.93. In reality, there was no such check, and the selier received nothing

from the sale of her home.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349,
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COUNTTWO

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

L Paragraphs | through 7 and 9-12 of Count One of this indictment are

incorporated here.,

THE SCHEME

2. From approximately in or about 2006-to in or about April 2009,
ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, III,

knowingly devised and intended to devise a scheme to defraud, and to obtain money and property
by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises.

3 In total, from approximately 2006 through April 2009, defendant
ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, 111, and his criminal associates fraudulently obtained
" approximately $3! million of new mortgage loans on approximately 114 properties through this
scheme. From this new mortgage money, defendant DEMARCO obtained approximately $11
million of proceeds due to the sellers (i.e., their equity).

MANNER AND MEANS

It was part of the scheme that:

The Sale of M.S. and L.S.’s Home to M.B.

4. In 2007, M.S, and L.S. were having financial difficulties and were facing
foreclosure on their home in Spotswood, New Jersey. A DeMarco REI employee told M.S. that
DeMarco REI would purchase M.S. and 1..S.’s home and M.S. and L.S. would lease the house,

paying rent to DeMarco REI, while DeMarco REI restored their ¢redit. A DeMarco REI



Page 10 of 28

MMB Documentl Filed 12/09/

employee told M.S, that after a year he would be able to purchase the house back from DeMarco
REL

5. DeMarco REI employees prepared a fraudulent contract for the sale of
M.S. and L.S.’s home to DeMarco REI which the employees presented to M.S. and L.S. for
si'gnarure. DeMarco REI employees also prepared a contract for the sale of the M.S, and L.S.’s

home to M.B., a DeMarco REI investor. On or about November 19, 2007, the home was sold to

M.B.

6. Over the course of the next year, M.S. and L.S. acquired the funds to re-
purchase their house. They contacted defendant ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, III, who told
them to wire funds to a particular account at Sovereign Bank.

7. On or about March 5, 2009, at defendant ANTHONY JAMES
DEMARCO, III’s direction, M.S, and L.S. wired $245,000 from M.S.’s bank account in New

Jersey to defendant DEMARCO’s personal account at Sovereign Bank, which M.S. believed was

a DeMarco REI account,

8. On or about March 6, 2009, defendant ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO,
- 1II used these funds to purchase a Ferrari and to buy jewelry and used none of the funds for the

purchase of M.S. and L.S.’s house,

9, On or about March 5, 2009, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, and clsewhere, defendant
ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, III,
for the purpose of executing the scheme described above, and attempting to do so, caused to be

transmitted by means of wire communication in interstate commerce $245,000 from M.S.’s

10



Case 2:10-cr-O&0-MMB  Document 1 Filed 12/09 Page 11 of 28
account in New Jersey to defendant DEMARCO’s personal account at Sovereign Bank in

Pennsylvania,

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343,

I
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COUNT THREE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 1 through 7 and 9 through 12 of Count One, and paragraphs 2

through 8 of Count Two, are incorporated here.

2. On or about March 6, 2009, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendant
ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, 111
knowingly engaged in a monetary transaction affecting interstate commerce in criminally derived
property of a value greater than $10,000, and such property was derived from a specified
uniawtul activity, that is wire fraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1957,
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COUNT FOUR

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

l. Paragraphs | through 7 and 9 through 17 of Count One of this indictment

are incorporated here.

2. In or about October 2008, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants

MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS
ERIC BASCOVE, and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
knowingly executed, and attempted to execute, and aided and abetted the execution of, a scheme
to defraud Flagstar Bank FSB, and to obtain monies owned by and under the care, custody, and

control of that bank by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1344 and 2.

13
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COUNT FIVE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs | through 7 and 9 through 17 of Count One of this indictment

are incorporated here.

THE SCHEME

2. From in or about September 2008 to October 1, 2008, defendant

MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE

knowingly devised and intended to devise a scheme to defraud, and to obtain money and property
by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises.
3. On or about October 1, 2008, in Pittsburgh, in the Western District of

Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants

MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE

for the purpose of executing the scheme described above, and aiding and abetting its execution,
caused to be transmitted by means of wire communication in interstate commerce, a wire transfer
of $114,932.20 from Flagstar Bank in Troy, Michigan, to the ¢scrow account of Settlement
Engine, Inc. at PNC Bank in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

All In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2.

14
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COUNT SIX
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:
L Paragraphs 1 through 7 and 9 through 17 of Count One of this indictment

are incorporated here.

THE SCHEME

2. From in or about September 2008 to October 1, 2008, defendant

MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE

knowingly devised and intended to devise a scheme to defraud, and to obtain money and property
by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises.
3 On or about September 30, 2008, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, and clsewhere, defendants

MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE

for the purpose of executing the scheme described above, and aiding and abetting its execution,
caused to be transmitted by means of wire communication in interstate commerce, an ¢-mail
message from C.S. at Settlement Engine in Pittsburgh to P.M. at DeMarco REI in Philadelphia,
attaching a copy of the HUD for the sale of P.H."s home to M.D.B. and asking P.M. whether the

HUD was “OK.”

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2.
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COUNT SEVEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

l. Paragraphs 1 through 7, 9 through 14, and 18 through 21 of Count One of
this indictment are incorporated here.

2. In or about October 2008, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants

ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, 111
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS, and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
knowingly executed, and aided and abetted the execution of, a scheme to defraud Flagstar Bank
FSB, and to obtain monies owned by and under the care, custody, and control of that bank by

means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1344 and 2.
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COUNTEIGHT

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

l. Paragraphs 1 through 7, 9 through 14, and 18 through 2! of Count One of

this indictment are incorporated here.

THE SCHEME

2. In or about October 2008, defendant
ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, 111
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS, and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
knowingly devised and intended to devise a scheme to defraud, and to obtain money and property

by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises.

3. On or about October 9, 2008, in the Western District of Pennsylvania, and

elsewherc, defendants

ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, 111,
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS, and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
for the purpose of executing the scheme described above, and aiding and abetting its execution,
caused to be transmitted by means of wire communication in interstate commerce, a wire transfer
of $300,875.48 from Flagstar Bank in Troy, Michigan, to the escrow account of Settlement

Engine, Inc. at PNC Bank in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2.
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COUNT NINE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

. Paragraphs 1 through 9, 9 through 14, and 18 through 21 of Count One of

this indictment are incorporated here.

THE SCHEME

2. In or about October 2008, defendant
ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, II1
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS, and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
knowingly devised and intended to devise a scheme to defraud, and to obtain money and property
by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises.
3. On or about October 9, 2008, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants

ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, III,
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS, and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE

for the purpose of executing the scheme described above, and aiding and abetting its execution,
‘caused to be transmitted by means of wire communication in interstate commerce, an e-mail
message from C.S. at Settlement Engine in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, to defendant MICHAEL
RICHARD ROBERTS at DeMarco REI in Philadelphia, advising him that she is sending the
HUD, for the sale of R.P.’s home to D.P., to P.M. at DeMarco REI and wilil then send P.M, the
seller packet to give to “you guys.”

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2.
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COUNT TEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

L. Paragraphs | through 7, 9 through 14, and 22 through 26 of Count One of
this indictment are incorporated here.

2. In or about December 2008, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants

ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, 111,
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS, and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE

knowingly executed, and aided and abetted the execution of, a scheme to defraud American
Partners Bank, also known as Waterficld Bank, and to obtain monies owned by and under the

care, custody, and control of that bank by means of false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations, and promises,

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1344 and 2.
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COUNTELEVEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs ! through 7, 9 through 12, and 22 through 26 of Count One of

this indictment are incorporated here.

THE SCHEME

2. In or about December 2008, defendants
ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, 111,
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS, and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
knowingly devised and intended to devise a scheme to defraud, and to obtain money and property
by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises.

3 On or about December 5, 2008, in Pittsburgh, in the Western District of

Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants

ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCQG, IIL,
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS, and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE,
for the purpose of executing the scheme described above, and aiding and abetting its execution,

caused to be transmitted by means of wire communication in interstate commerce, a wire transfer

of $206,808.38 from American Partners Bank in Carmel, [ndiana, to the escrow account of

Settlement Engine, Inc. at PNC Bank in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2.
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COUNT TWELVE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

[ Paragraphs | through 7, 9 through 14, and 22 through 26 of Count One of

this indictment are incorporated here.

THE SCHEME

2. In or about December 2008, defendants
ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, 1],
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS, and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
knowingly devised and intended to devise a scheme to defraud, and to obtain money and property

by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises.

3. On or about December 5, 2008, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants

ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCQO, II1,
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS, and
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE,
for the purpose of exccuting the scheme described above, and aiding and abetting its execution,
caused to be transmitted by means of wire communication in interstate commerce, an e-mail
message from C.S. at Settlement Engine in Pittsburgh to P.M. at DeMarco RE! in Philadelphia,

attaching a revised HUD for the sale of A.B.’s home to S.R. and asking “How’s this one?”

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2.
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COUNT THIRTEEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 1 through 7 and 9 through 12 of Count One of this indictment
are incorporated here.

2, B.M. inherited his residence in Elizabeth, Pennsylvania, in about 2000.
Several years later, B.M. was in the process of divorcing his wife. Their property settlement
provided that she would receive half of the appraised value of the home, approximately $60,000.
B.M. needed to sell or mortgage his house to obtain this money.

3. B.M. met with defendant SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE at Settlement Engine
in Pittsburgh, Defendant MCBRIDE told B.M. that defendant MCBRIDE would arrange for an
investor to purchase the M.B.’s home on a short-term basis, the $60,000 would be paid to B.M.’s
wife, and B.M. would be able to re-purchase his home as soon as defendant MCBRIDE could
find him the right mortgage lender. B.M. agreed to defendant MCBRIDE’s proposal.

4. Defendant SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE arranged for a straw buyer, 1.5, to
take title to B.M.’s home. J.S. put no money into the transaction.

5. Settlement Engine was the settfement agent for this transaction. On or
about Qctober 31, 2008, Everbank in Jacksonville, Florida, wired $102,090,77 to Settlement
Engine, the new mortgage money. Defendant SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE took approximately
$21,000 of the cash due to B.M. and instead disbursed this money to, among others, himself and
J.S. the buyer, who put no meney into this transaction. Defendant MCBRIDE also diverted
approximately $34,204.02 of the cash due to B.M. to make the “down payment” and pay

closing costs. These disbursements are not reflected on the settlement statement,
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6. B.M. then became a renter, paying approximately $1,050 per month to
Lake Haven Management, LLC, a company of which defendant MCBRIDE was president.
7. In or about October 2008, in Pittsburgh, in the Western District of
Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendant
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
knowingly executed, and attempted to execute, a scheme to defraud Everbank, and to obtain

monies owned by and under the care, custody, and control of that bank by means of false and

fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises.

In violation of Title 8, United States Code, Section1344,
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COUNT FOURTEEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:
[ Paragraphs | through 7 and paragraphs 9 through 12 of Count One and
paragraphs 2 through 6 of Count Thirteen of this indictment are incorporated here.
THE SCHEME
2. In or about October 2008, defendant
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
knowingly devised and intended to devise a scheme to defraud, and to obtain money and property
by mcans of false and fraudulent pretenées, representations and promises.

3. On or about October 31, in Pittsburgh, in the Western District of

Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendant

SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
for the purpose of executing the scheme described above, and attempting to do so, caused to be
transmitted by means of wire communication in interstate commerce, a wire transfer of
approximately $102,090.77 from Everbank in Jacksonville, Florida, to the escrow account
of Settlement Engine, Inc. at PNC Bank in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.
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COUNT FIFTEEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

i, Paragraphs | through 7 and 9 through 12 of Count One of this indictment

are incorporated here.

2, In July 2009, defendant ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, II1, left

DeMarco REI

3. From in or about July 2009 through in or about December 2009, defendant
ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, U was the Chief Executive Officer of Optima Property
Management Group (“OPM Group”), in King of Prussia, Pennsylvania.

4, In or about the Summer 2009, G.C., an elderly widow on Primrose Street
in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, was facing foreclosure,

5. Defendant ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCQ, I, arranged for the sale of

G.C.’s house to .M., an investor.

6. A.A. Inc. was the settlement agent for this transaction, which closed on or
about September 15, 2009. The settlement sheet falsely shows that J.M. paid $49,561.74 to
cover the down payment and closing costs. [n fact, J.M. paid nothing; instead, OPM Group paid

J.M. an investor fee for purchasing G.C."s house.

7. On or about September 17, 2009, A A. wired $49,561.74, the exact
amount of the buyer’s down payment and closing costs, from the seller’s funds to OPM Group.

Thereafter, OPM Group wired back $49,561.74 to A.A., the pay the buyer’s funds to close.

8. After the sale of her home to J.M., G.C. remained in her home, paying

rent to OPM Group.
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9, On or about October 14, 2009, G.C. sent a Citizens Bank Official Check
payable to OPM Group for $1,000 to OPM Group in King of Prussia by Express Mail, for her
rent. On or about October 19, 2009, this check was deposited into OPM Group’s bank account.

10. Although the first mortgage payment on (G.C.’s house was due on
November 1, 2009, defendant ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, III, caused a check backed by
insufficient funds to be sent to the mortgage company. The check ultimately bounced.

It. On or about October 14, 2009, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of
Pennﬁylvania, and elsewhere, defendant

ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, II],
for the purpose of executing the scheme described above, and attermpting to do so, knowingly
caused to be delivered by mail according to the directions thereon, an Express Mail package from
G.C. in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, to OPM Group, LLC, in King of Prussia, Pennsylvania,
which contained a Citizens Bank Official Check payable to OQPM Group for $1,000 to OPM

Group.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341.
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NOTICE OF FORFEITURE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:
1. As a result of the violations of Title 18, United States Code, Sections
1341, 1343, and 1349, set forth in this indictment, defendants

ANTHONY JAMES DEMARCO, 111,
MICHAEL RICHARD ROBERTS,
SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE, and
ERIC BASCOVE

shall forfeit to the United States of America any property constituting, or derived from, proceeds

obtained directly or indirectly from the commission of such offenses, including, but not limited

to the sum of $31,202,684.

2. If any of the property described above, as a result of any actor omission of
the defendant:
a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;
b. has been transferred to, sold to, or deposited with a third party;
c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of this Court;
d. has been substantially diminished in value; or
e. has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided

without difficulty;
it is the intention of the United States, pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 853(p), to seek forfeiture of any

other property of the defendant up to the value of the property subject to forfeiture.
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All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 981(a)(1)(C), 28 U.S.C.

§ 2461, and United States Code, Section 853,

A TRUE BILL:

GRAND JURY FOREPERSON

ECF
DOCUMENT
ZANE DAVID MEMEGER | hareby attest and cartify that thip is & printed copy of &
United States Attorney doctment which was slectronically filed with the United States -
mcmmmsmo:?m Pannsyivania.
Osde Fllsc: [ /

Z/zﬂ%%ﬁ . Dopuly Clerk
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INTHE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE FASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA :
V. CRIMINAL NO. 10-790-03
SEAN RYAN MOBRIDE :

GUILTY PLEA AGREEMENT

tinder Rude T ol the Federal Rules of Criminad Pracedare, the govenunent. the
detendant, and the defendant’s counsel enter into the folfowing gutlty plea apreement. Any
reltrence to the nited States or the govermuent in this agreement shall mean the Oflice of the
Uhated States Attorney Tor the Bastern District of Pennsyivania.

I The defendant agrees o plead guilty o Count 1 and Cownts 4 through 14
ol the Indictment. charging him with conspiracy to conmut wire fraud and bank t'ruu'd,.in
violation of 18 TES.CL 8 13490 wire Teaud, in viokation ol 18 HLS.CL§ 13430 bunk fraud, in
violation of T8 UES.C. § 1344 and aiding and abetting, in violation o FRVER.CL§ 20 These
charges arise [rom the defendant’s conduct in aiding and abetting a mortgage toreclosure rescue
suheme conducted by Anthony DeMiarco wnd others at Dedbareo RIFL Inel from approximalely
June 2608 throueh carly December 20080 and from the defendant s conmmission ol a Trnadufent
motgee transaction in Pi(f:»'ht:t'gh. which he conducted theouuh [ake Hoven Holdings, 1EC, in
or abowt October 2008, Fhe defendant further acknowledges his swaiver of rights, as set forth iy

the satehment (o his durcement,
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! Phe detendant also agrees not Lo contest forfetture as set forth inthe
notice ol feefeiture chargime eriminad forfeiture under TR PLSCOS O3 O, and 28 U808
BRI

AN Me detendunt agrees to pay the special vietims/witness assessment in the
atmount ol $1.200 betore the time of sentencing and shatl provide a reccipl from the Clerk (o the
vovenunent belore sentencing as proot of this pavment.

+. The detendant agrees 1o make restitution us divected by the Court, o order
to -l'aciiitut-.: the collection of Hnancial obligations to be imposed in conneetion with this
prosceution, the defendant aprees fully to disclose all assets in which he has any inferest or over
which the defendant exercises control, dirvectly or indirectly. including those held by a spousc,
rominee. or other third party.  Accordingly:

i The defendant will promptly submit a completed fipancial
statenient to the TLS. Attorney's Office. i a lormy it provides and as it direets. The delondant
prowises that his financial statement and disclosures will be complete, aceurate, and truthful,

b. Che defenduant expressly authorizes the ULS. Attorney's Oflice to
obtain a credyt report on him in order to evaluate the delendant™s ahility o satisly any Nnancia
abligation imposed by the Court.

3 Phe detendant waives any claioy under the Fvde Amendment, 8 1LS.C,
3 06 (Statutory Note), for attorney's {ees and other itigation expenses aristing out of the

iy estigation or prosceutton of this matter.

B
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o. The partics agree that this plea agreement 1s musde pursuant to
Federal Rufe of Criminal Procedure e IUXC) and that the following specifie senlence is the
appropriate disposition of this caser 63 months incarceration, a [ve-vear pertod ol supervised
release, and a $1.200 special assessinent, The amount of fines, restitution, and forteiture will be
determined by the Court at sentencing. If the Court does not accept this plea agreement, then
cither the defendant or the government will have the right to withdraw from the plea agreement
and ingist that the case proeeed to trial.

7. The defendant understands, agrees. and has had exphained to him by
counsel that the Court may impose the following statutory maximum sentences: On cach of
Counts | and Counts 4 through 14 (charging conspiracy. bank fraud, wire traud. and aiding and
abetting). 30 vears” imprisonment. a five-year period of supervised refease, a § 1 million fine, und
a ST special assessment.

3 Thus, the total Maximum Sentence 15: 360 vears™ imprisonment, a five
vear period nf'supc;‘viscd release, $12 million {ine. and a $1.200 special assessment. Full
res[it_ution alse shall be ordered. Forteiture of all property ﬁonstiluting-, or dcrivcd. from, proceeds
ohtained directly or indirectly from the commission of such offenses, also may be ordered.

9, e defendant turther understands that supervised release may be revoked
it #s terms and conditions are viokated. When supervised refease is revoked, the original term ol
imprisonment may be increased by up to three years per count of conviction. Thus, a violation ot
supervised release increases the possible period of incarceration dnd makes it poasihle that the
delendunt will have to serve the original seatence, plus a substantial additional period. without

credit Tor ume already spent on supervised release.

Lok
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[, I'hedefendant may not withdriny his plea because the Coart declines to
follow any recommendation, motion. or stipulation by the parties to this agreement. No one bus
Promvised or guaranieed to the defendant what sentence the Court will impose.

I, Pursuant to USSE§ B4 the parties enter into the foltowing stipubutions
uider the Senteneing Goidelines Manual, 1t is understood and agreed that: (1) the parties wie free
Lo aroue the upplicability of iny other provision of the Sentencing Guidelines, including otfense
comluct, oifense characteristics. criminal history, adjustiments, and departures: (23 these
sttputations are not binding upon etther the Probation Offiee or the Courts and (3) ihe Court iy
make factnal and legad determinations that ditfer from these stipulations and thar may result in un
inereuse or deercase in the Sentencing Guidelines range and the sentence that may be imposed:

(i) Fhe parties agree and stipulate that the fraud loss was more than
S2.5 million bat less than $7 million,

{h) [ he purtics agree amd stipulate that there were more than 10
victinis but fewer than 30 vietims,

(¢} e parties agree and stipulate that the defendant abused a
position of public orprivate ltrusl. or used i special skill, in a manner that significantly
Facilitated the conunission of concealmient of the olfense.

(«h Uhe parties agree and stipulate that. as ol the dafe of this
dgreement, the defendant has demonstited aceeptance of responsibility for his olfense. muking
the defendang eligible (ora 2-level downward adjustment under USSG $ 3ET. 1 {a).

(<) Fhe parties agree and stipulate that, as ol the date of this

npreement. the defeadant has assisted authorities in the nvestipation or proseention of his awn
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misconduct by timely notitving the sovermnent of his intent to plead guilty, thereby permitiing
the vovernment to avoid preparing for triab and permitting the government and the cowt o
allocate their resources etficiently, resulting fn a L-level downward adjusiment under SSG 3

i Ly

F2. bt exchange lor the andertakings imade by the government in eotering this
pled agreement, the defendant voluntarily and expressly swaives all rights to appeal or collateratly
| attack the defendant’s conviction, sertence, or any other nuitter relating to this prosecution,
whether such a right to appeal c;r collateral atrack arises nuder (8 US.CL§ 374228 1.5.CL
$ 1291 28 LES.CL 8 2233, or any other provision of {aw,

a, Notwithstanding the saiver provision above, if the government
appeuls from the sentence, then the delendant may 1i)e i diveet appeal of his sentence.

b. [ the government does nof appeal. then notwithstanding the waiver
provision set forth in this paraeraph. the defendant may Nite a direct appeal hut may raise only
claims that:

(1 the defendant’s sentence on any count of conviction
exceeds the stututory maximum for that count as st forth in paragraph 8 above:

(2} the sentencing judpe erroneously departed upward pursuant
ey ﬂm sentencing Guidelines: and/or

(3 ihe sentencing judge. exercising the Court’s diseretion

purstant te Lloited States v, Booker. 343 LS. 220 12005), imposed an unreasonable sentence

above the final Semencing Guideline range determined by the Court,

wd
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13, e detendaar waives bl riafits. whether asserted directy or hy
represenlative, o reguest o receive front any departiment or ageney ol the Untted States aov
records pertaining to the investigation or prosceution ol this cises including without bmitation
any records that may be sought under the Frecdom of intormation Act. 3 LLS.CU8 3520 or the
Privacy Act, 3 [7N.C 8 3550,

I}, Ihe detendunt is satisfied with the Tegal representation provided by the
defendant’s lawver: the defendant and this lawyer have Tubly discussed this plea agreement: and
the defendunt s agreeing to plead guilty because the detendant admids that he is guilty,

15 [t is agreed that the parties” vuilty plea agreement contains no additional
pramises. agreements, or understandings other than those set forth i this written guilty plea
avreement, and that no additional promises, agreements, or winderstandings will be entered into
nrdess iy writing and signed by all parties, In addition, the prior olf-the-record profter letter
dated March 302000, 15 revoked as ol the Jdate this plea is entered,

ZANE DAV MEMEGER
United States Attorney

Rl ans _gj:,: ?@Ggﬁ%v

S‘__Ii.-\N RY AN M(_‘BRH"}I‘{ PETER FSCHENCK
Detendant Chiet, Cominal Diviston
I Assistant Uhnited States Attorney

o -' v ’J-.___‘- 4‘_':)::“““___ o K (‘\-A . u,.»'lt ; {\‘r\)\
NMICHATE ENGLE, BSOUIRYE: | \I{E NT.OGRIGSBY \/
Counsel Tor Delendant Assistant United States Attorne

™ P
e c o

{y
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Attachment

INCTHE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FORTHE FEASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
V. : CRINHNAL NO. TO-790-03

SEEAN RYAN MCBRIDE

ACKNOWLEDRGMENT OQF RIGHTS

| hereby acknowledue that | have certain rights that Lwill be giving up by pleading guilty,
l. Funderstand that T'do not have to plead guilty,

2. I may plead not euilty and insist upon a trial.

—

At that trial, Funderstand

a. that 'would have the right to be tricd by u jury that would he sefected from
the Fastern District of Penmsylvania amd that along with my attorney. T would have the right (o
participate in the selection of that jury: :

h. that the jury could only convict me ifall 12 jurors agrecd that they were
convineed of my goilt bevond a reasonable doubt,

c. that the government would have the burden of proving my guill beyond a
reasonable doubt and that I would not have to prove anything;

. that Fwould be presumed innocent unfess and until such time as the jory
wis convineed beyond a reasonable doubt that the government had proven that [ was guilty:

. that T waould have the right 1o be represented by a lawyer at this trial and at
any appeal following the trial, and that iF' | could not attord to hive a lawyer, the court would
apypoint one for me free of charge:

[ that through my kovver Ihwould have the right to confront and ¢ross-
exaintine the witnesses apainst me:

g, that [ could testify in my ovwn delense i winued to and Feould subpoena
witnesses o estify in my delense 0T wanted to) and
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h. that | would not have to estifly or otherwise present any defense (01 did not
want (o and that 1F 1 did not prosent any evidence. the jury cotdd not hold that against e,

4. Funderstand that 101 plead eutity, there will he no trial and | woudd be giving up
all of the rights listed above.

3. I understund that i1 decide 1o enter a plea of guilty, the judge will ask me
questions under oath and that #71 He in answering those questions. [ ecould be prosecuted for the
crime of perjury. that is, for lying under oath,

6. Lunderstand that if | plead guitty, T have given up my right o appeal, except as set
forth in the appelfate waiver provisions ol my plea agreement.

7. Understanding that I have all these rights and that by pleading gutlty | am giving
them up. | sull wish to plead guilty.

8. Facknowledge that no one has promised me what senfence the Court will impose.
am aware and have discussed with my attorney that, at sentencing, the Court will caleulate the
semteneing Guidelines range (ineluding whether any departures apply). and then, in determining
my sentence, will consider the Guideline range and all relevant policy statements in the
Sentencing Guidelines, along with other sentencing actors set forth in 18 U.8.C. § 3553(a),
including o

{1} the nature and circumstinces of the offense and my personal histery and
churaeteristics:

(2) the need for the sentence imposed-- () to reflect the serionsness of the offense. 1o
promote respect tor the faw, and to provide just punishment for the vffense: (B) to atford
adequiaie deterrence to eriminal conduet; (C) to protect the public from further crimes ol
the defendunt; and (12} to provide the defendant with needed educational or vacational
training. medical care, or ather correctional ireatment in the most effective manner:

(3Y the kingds of sentences available:
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() the need o avoid unsarranted sentence disparities among detendants with similar
records who have been found guilty of similar conduct; and

(3) the need to provide restitution to any victims ol the oftense.

ety /L )

&@\N RY AN MCRBRIDI
Detendant

MICHARL ENGLE, ESQUIRE
Counsel forthe Defendant

oy

ooy

Dated: SfT
e e

ECF
DOCUMENT
| hareby ettest and certify that this s a printed copy of a

dacument which was electronically filed with tha Linited States -
District Count for the Eastem District of Pennsylvania.

overwe__>/ (3/12

Eay , Deputy Clark

-+
Y
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oA 245 (Rev. 06/03) Judgmedt i o Criminal Case

Sheet o
’ UNITED STATES. DISTRICT COURT
FEASTERN District of . PENNSYLVANIA
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA: JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
vl

SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE. .
Case Number: DPAE2;010CR000790-003
USM Number: 66351-066-

Michael J. Engle, Esq.
Defendant’s Allomey.

THE DEFENDANT:
X pleaded guilty to count{s) [,45.6;7.8,9.10,11,12,£3, 14

I pleaded nolo contendere to count(s):
which was accepted by the court.

[J'was found guilty on, count(s)
after.a plea of hot guilty.

The defendant is adjudicated guilty of these offenses:

Title & Section Niature of Offensg Offense Ended - Coupt
18UISE§1349 Conspiracy to commit wire fraud and bank fraud 131/09 1
ISUSE§§1344 and 2 Bank fraud and aiding and abetting 7/31/09 4,7,10,13
IRUSCE§1343 and 2 Wire fraud and aiding and abetting 73109 5,689, 11,1214
The defendant is sentenced as pravided in pages 2 through. 6 of this judgment. The sentenc# is imposed pursuant to

the Sentoncing Reform Act of 1984,
[ Thie defendant has.been found not guilty on count(s)

O Countdsy ) dis [Z} are dismissed on the motion of the United States..

.. Itis ordered that the defendant must notity the Unfted Statesattomey foF this district within 30 days of any change of name, residence,
or.mailing address until all fines, resratunfﬂ..cnsls, and special assgssments imposed by this judgment are fully paid,” If ordered to pay restitution,
the defendant must notify the. court and. United Sfates attormey of material changes in ecoriomie eircumstances.

1O/L/12
Lraté of Impositig:

F Signa of Iu
DO({ESMENT Sig yé f hudge

rtify that this is & printed coRy oda

dce Ty
Piosivisd amﬂic?\n as electronically fited with the Un:ted s et . o 5.0
dxum@nt wh W tarn Qistnct ol Panﬂs\iwm & l aet M, B: y sbhol .
District Coust for the Easle Name and Title of Judge .
T !
Date Filed

DATED:_ Y

AWEST)%%EMWM\\

EASTIM £ OF PELNSYIVANIA
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AL 245R LRev. 06083 Judgment in Comunal C
Sheet 2 — Imprisonment e

Judgment — ['age 2 of [CR—

DEFENDANT: SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
CASE NUMBER: DPAEZ:10-000790-003

IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be imprisoned for a
total term of:

63 months on each count to be served concurrently.

X The court makes the following recommendations 1o the Bureau of Prisons:

Destgnation.of MCI Morgantown, WV o Elkton, OH

{1 The defendunt Is remanded to, the custody of the United States Marshal.

[ The defendant shall surrender to theé United Stdtes: Marshal for this district

3 a O am. () pm on

1 asnotified by the United States: Marshal.
X The defendant shail surrender for service of sentenée at the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons:

. of the institute by the Bureau of Prisons to that institute; or to the US
before 2 pm. onOctober |35, 2012 Marshai, of the Wester Distriet of PA If no designation made.

1 s notified by the United States Marshal,

[J as notified by the Probation or Pretrial Services Office,

RETURN

I hive executed this judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered to

at , with a certified copy of this judgment,

UNITED STATES MARSHAL

By
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A3 (Rev. 06405y Judgment in a Crinnnal
Sheet 3 — Supervised Reloase

Judgment—Pnye 3 of A )

DEFENDANT: SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
CASE NUMBER:  DPAEZ2:10-000790-003
SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon retease from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of

5 years consisting of a term of five years on each of Counts 1,4,5,6,7,8.2,10,11,12,13 and 14, all such terms to run concurrently.

The defendant must report to the probation office in the district to which the defendant is released within 72 hours of reiease from the
custady of the Bureau of Prisons, :

The defendant shall not commit another federal, state or local crime;

The defendant shall not unlawfully possess a controlled substance; The defendant shall refrain from any unlawful use of a controlled:
substance. The defendant shall- submit to' one drug test within | 5 days of refease from imprisonment and at least o periodic drug tests
ithereafter, as determined by the court.. )

[T The above drug testing condition Is suspended; based on the court’s determination that the defendant poses a Jow risk of-
future substance abuse: (Check, if applicable:).
X The defendant shall not possess a firearm, amniunitfon, destructive device; or any other dangerous weapon. (C€heck, if applicable.y
X The defendant shall cooperate in the collection of DNA as directed by the probation ofticer, (Chaek, if applicable:)
[0 The defendant shall register with the state sex offender regisiration agency in ihie state where the defendanit resides; works, or is a
student, as directed by the probation officer. (Check, if applicable.)
{J The defendant shall participate in an approved program for domestie violence. (Check, if applicable.y

El'thisljudg,m'ent imposes a.fine or restitution, it is & conditian of supervised release that the defendant pay in accordunce with the
Schedule of Payments sheet of this judgment,

The deféndant must comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court as well as with any additionat conditions
on the attached page.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

1) the defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer;

1) the l-?efemtlftmt' shall report to the probation officer and shall submit a truthfid and complete written report within the first five days of
each manthy, .

3) the defendant shall answer truthfully ail inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer;
4)  the defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities;.

5) the defendant shall work regularly at a lawfil occupation; unless.excused by the probation. officer for schoolingy raining, or other
acceptable reasons; b

6)  the defendant'shall notify the probation officer at least ten days prior 1o any change in residence or employment;,

7} the defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall nof purchase, possess, use, distribute; or administer any
controtled substance or any paraphernalia related 1o any controfled substances, except as preseribed by a physician;

8} the defendant shall not frequent places-where controlled substances are ilfegally sold, uset, distributed, or administereds

9}  the defendant shail not assogiate with any persons cngaged in criminal activity and shall not associate with dny person convitted of 2
felony, unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer; )

{0)  the defendant shail permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit conflscation of any
contraband observed in plain view of the probation officer;

11}y the defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement officer;

13y the defendant shall not enter into any agreenient to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without the
permission of the court; and

13)  asdirccted by the ?ro_hmiun offtcer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may he occasioned by the defendant’s criminal
record or personal history or characteristics and shall permit the probation officer 1o make such notifications and to confirm the
defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement,



Case 2:10-cr-00790-MMB  Document 137 Filed 10/03/12 Page 4 of 6

AL 2450 {Rev. 06/03) Judgment in o Cnminal
Shiet 3A — Supervised Release

Hedgment--Page 4 uf o

DEFENDANT: SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
CASE NUMBER: DPAEZ:10-000790-003

ADDITIONAL SUPERVISED RELEASE TERMS

The defendant shall provide the US Probation Office with full disclosure of his financial records to include yearly income tax
returns upon the request of the US Probation Office.. The defendant shall cooperate with the probation officer in the
investigation of his financial dealings and shall provide truthful statements of his income.

Thie defendant is prohiliited from incurring any new crédit charges or opening additional lines of credit without the approval
of the probation officer, unless the defendant is in compliance with a payment schedule for any fine or restitution obligation.
The defendant shall not encumber or liquidate interest-in any assets unless it is in direct service of the fine or restitution
obligation or otherwise has the express approval of the Court. '

The defendant shall participate in a.mental health program for evaluation and/or treatment as appreved by the Court after,
receiving a recommendation by the-U.S. Probation Otfice. The defendant shall remain in treatment until satisfactorily-
discharged with the approval of the Court.
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DEFENDANT: SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
CASE NUMBER: DPAE2:10-000790-003

CRIMINAL MONETARY PENALTIES

Tha de fendant must pay the tolal criminal monegtary penalties under the schedule of payments on Sheet 6,

Assessment Fine Restitution
TOTALS S 1.200.00 S $ TBD

&

The determination of restitation is deferred until . An dmended. Judgment in g Criminal. Case (AO 245C) will be entered
after such determination.

0  The defendant must make restitution (including community restitution) to the ﬁ:‘:lldwing payees in the amount listed below.
If the defendantmakes o partial payment, each patee shall receive an approximatel rognrtion-.-d payment, unless specified otherwise in
the priority order or percentage payment column below. However, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 36641}, all nonfederal victims must be paid
before the United States is paid.
Nuine of Payee Total Loss® Restitution Ordered Priority or Percentaps
TOTALS $ 0 $ i 0
[J Restitution amount ordered pursuant to plea agreement §
0  The defendant must pay interest on restitution and a fine of more than $2,500, unless the restitution or fine is paid in full belore the
fifteenth day afier the date of the judgment, pursuant ta 18 U.5.C. § 3612(1). All of the payment options on Sheet 6 may be subject
to penalties for definquency and default, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3612(g).
X The court determined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest and it is ordered that;

X the interest requirement is waived forthe X fing X restitution,

[ the interest requirement forthe [ fire [ restitution is modilied as follows:

* Findings for the total amount of losses are requived under Chapters [09A, 110, 110A, and | 13A of Title 18 for offenses committed on or after
September 13, 1994, but before Aprii 23, 1996.
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DEFENDANT: SEAN RYAN MCBRIDE
CASE NUMBER: DPAEZ: 10-00079(-003 _

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS
Having assessed the defendant’s ability to pay, payment of the towat criminal monetary penalties are due as followst
A X Lumpsumpaymentof§ 1.200.00 dug immediately, balance due

1 notlater than ,or
X inaccardance O ¢, Op O Eo X Fbelowior

(3 Pdyment to begin imnediately (may bie combined with [ C. O Dsor (] F below);, ot

C [’ Paymentinequal {¢.g., weekly, monthly, quarterly) installments of $ over a period of
{e:g:, months or years), to commence {e.g., 30 or 60 days) after the date of this judgment; or

D [ Paymeniinequal (e.g., weekly, monthly, quarterly) Installments of $ over d period of
(e.2., months or years), to conunence (e.2:, 30 or 60 days) after release from imprisonment to a

term of supervision; or

E [ Payment during thie term of supervised release will commence within {e.g., 30 or 60 doys)after release from
imprisonment. The court will set the payment plan based on an assessment of the defendant's ability to pay at that time; or

F X Spécial instructions regarding the payment of criminal monetary penaliics:

The defendant may panticipate. inr the Bureau of Prisons Inmate Financial Responsibility Programi and provide a minimum payment
of $23 per quarter towards the fine/restitution: [n the event the fine/restitution is pot paid prior to the commencement of
supervision, the defendant shail satisfy the amount due in ;nonthly instaliments of not less than $500.00 to commence 30 days afier
refease from continement. The defendant shall notify the US. Attorney for this distri¢t within 30 days of any change of mailing
address.or residence that occurs while any portion of the fine/restitution remains unpaid: '

Unless the court has exprqsslr ordered otherwise, if’ th{sj'ud%incnt imposes imprisonment, a&mem of eriminal monetary penalties is due durin
imprisoniment. All criminal monetary penallies, except those payments made througﬁ he Federal Burgau of Prisons’ [nmate Financia

Responsibility Program, are madete the clerk of the coust.

THe defendant shall receive eredit for all payments previously made toward any criminal monetary penalties imposed,

O Joint and Several

Defendant and Co-Defendant Names and Casc Numbers (including defendant number), Total Amount, Joint and Several- Amount,
and corresponding payee, if approprinte. '
Anthony James DeMarco, [1] 10-790-1; Michael Richard Roberts 10-790-2; Eric Bascove 10-750-4

{1 The defendant shall pay the cost of prosecution.

O

The defendant shali pay the following court cost(s):

[1  ‘The defendand shall forfeit the defendant’s interest in the following property ta the United States:

Payments shall be applied in the following order: ( I? assessment, (2) restitution prineipal, (3) restitution interest, (4) fine principal,
(3) fine interest, (6) community restitution, {7} penaltics, and () cesty, Including cost of prosecution and court cosis,



